REPUBLICAN CLUB OF LAGUNA WOODS

ARTICLE I NAME

This 501(c)(4) nonprofit organization shall be known as REPUBLICAN CLUB OF LAGUNA WOODS, hereinafter referred to as the Club.

ARTICLE II

OBJECTIVES

The objectives of the Club shall be to:

- A. Promote civic engagement and public education rooted in conservative principles and values historically associated with the Republican Party
- B. Encourage residents to participate in the democratic process, strengthen constitutional governance, and support the common good through meetings, issue-based advocacy, and community outreach.
- c. Educate members and the public through speakers that discuss our common values of economic prosperity, cutting taxes and government waste, and a return to education excellence.
- D. Encourage active participation by Club Members and cooperation with other like-minded organizations.

ARTICLE III

POLICIES

Sec. A. PROGRAMS:

Invitations to speak at any meeting of the Club shall be extended by the Program Chairman with the approval of the President.

- Sec. B. Regularly scheduled Club General Meetings shall be held monthly, generally on the first Friday of the month. The date may be changed by the President if required to accommodate changing circumstances such as facility availability, program speaker schedules, etc. The meeting may be cancelled for summer vacations or at other times if determined by the President.
- Sec. C. All meetings shall be opened with non-denominational invocation and followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America.
- Sec. D. No material, including petitions, shall be distributed at the Club meetings or events without the President, presiding officer or prior approval of the Board of Directors.
- Sec. E. There shall be no unauthorized use of the Club name. Resolutions of a national, state or local nature shall be reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors.
- Sec. F. The Membership Roster shall be used for Club purposes only and is not to be given or sold to any organization or individual without Board approval.
- Sec. G. No Club officer or member shall commit the Club to any action without Board approval.

ARTICLE IV

ENDORSEMENTS AND SUPPORT OF CANDIDATES

As a 501(c)(4) public benefit corporation, the Republican Club of Laguna Woods does not endorse candidates. The club focuses on promoting conservative principles and encouraging residents to take part in the democratic process, staying informed, and voting.

ARTICLE V

MEMBERSHIP

Sec. A. Any resident of Laguna Woods may become a member of the Club subject to approval of the President or designated representative.

Sec. B. Non-Resident Members

- 1. Any Club member moving from Laguna Woods is privileged to continue membership by payment of annual dues, providing they do not exceed the non-resident membership limitations.
- 2. Any other non-resident may join the Club when recommended by a Club Member and approved by the Membership Vice President and, if needed, approved by the President and/or the BOD.
- 3. Non-Resident Members shall not exceed 20% of the total membership as stated by Laguna Woods Village Recreation requirements.
- Sec. C. Members in good standing are those whose current dues are paid.
- Sec. D. Only a member in good standing may vote on Club affairs or serve as a Club officer.
- Sec E. Membership may be terminated for cause (misconduct, violation of bylaws, non-payment of dues, etc.) as determined by the Board of Directors)

ARTICLE VI

DUES

- Sec. A. The fiscal year shall be the calendar year from January I through December 31.
- Sec. B. The types of membership are: Regular, Patron and Stars.
- Sec. C. Dues for all members shall be determined by the Board of Directors.
- Sec. D. Members paying dues on October 1 and thereafter shall be considered in good standing through December 31 of the following year.
- Sec. E. Dues for the current year are due before March 1.

<u>ARTICLE</u> VII

NOMINATIONS AND ELECTIONS

Sec. A. The Nominating Committee of five (5) members shall consist of three (3) appointed by the President with Board approval, no later than the September Board meeting, and (2) selected from the membership at the September general meeting.

Sec. B. Nominating Committee Procedures.

- The Committee shall prepare a slate of no more than one candidate for each office to be filled.
 Nominee's qualifications shall meet the requirements herein stated for each specific office, and the
 nominees shall have consented to serve if elected. The specific duties of each office shall have been
 outlined to the nominees by the Nominating Committee.
- 2. To be eligible for the office of President, a nominee shall have been an invested Club member in good standing for one year at the time of installation. He or she shall be a Laguna Woods Village resident.
- 3. To be eligible for the other offices, a member shall be in good standing for six months.
- 4. The Nominating Committee shall present the slate of nominees at the regular November meeting.
- Sec. C. Election of officers shall be a voice vote at the regular November meeting at which time nominations from the floor shall be in order, providing that such nominees meet the qualifications for the office and have given consent to serve if elected. A majority of members present, and voting, shall elect.
- Sec. D. All officers shall be elected for a term of one year.
- Sec. E. Vacancies occurring shall be filled by presidential appointment with Board approval.

ARTICLE VIII

OFFICERS AND DUTIES

The elected officers shall be President, First Vice-President-Program Chairman-Legislative, Second Vice-President-Membership, Secretary, and Treasurer. No officer shall hold more than one office.

Sec. A. President

- 1. It shall be the duty of the President to preside at all general and special Club meetings and all meetings of the Board of Directors.
- 2. The incoming President shall furnish each new member of the Executive Committee with a current copy of the Club's By-Laws at the January Board meeting.
- 3. The President shall appoint chairmen of such standing committees and any special committees as deemed necessary,
- 4. The President shall be an ex-officio member of all standing and special committees, except the Nominating Committee.
- 5. In January the President shall appoint a Budget Committee, consisting of the President, Immediate Past President, Treasurer, and any other officers the President deems necessary.
- 6. The President shall appoint an Auditor no later than the January meeting.
- 7. The President shall appoint an assistant program person when the first Vice-President is busy with other matters.

Sec. B <u>First Vice-President-Program-Legislative Liaison</u>

- 1. The First Vice-President shall be responsible for inviting and presenting speakers for all regular and special Club meetings. This officer shall make all necessary arrangements for such speaker. (See Art. III, Sec. A. Programs)
- 2. The outgoing First Vice-President shall be responsible for securing the January speaker for The coming year.
- 3. The First Vice-President shall perform the duties of the President in the absence of the President.

Sec. C. Second Vice-President – Membership Chairman.

- 1. The Second Vice-President shall have the responsibility of membership renewal and any Membership drive.
- 2. Upon receipt of membership dues, this officer shall keep all records pertaining to this office <u>including</u> email addresses.
 - If pertinent information is required to be sent out by President, notification by email will be done by Email Notification.
- 3. The Second Vice-President shall perform the duties of the President in the absence of both the President and First Vice-President.

Sec. D. Secretary

- 1. The Secretary shall record the proceedings of Board meetings and shall be the Custodian of all official Club records pertaining to the office.
- 2. The Secretary shall submit to the President a copy of the minutes of all Board meetings within one week after the meeting. When approved, sent to Board members.
- 3. When meeting in board room, submit to the Clubhouse the Attendance form after Board meeting.

Sec. E. Treasurer

- 1. The Treasurer shall receive and deposit all Club monies in a bank approved by the Board.
- 2. The Treasurer shall keep complete records and present a monthly report at each Board meeting and an annual report at the end of the year.
- 3. The Treasurer shall submit all records and accounts to the appointed auditor as of the close of the fiscal year. The Auditor shall examine the books, records and other accounts and submit a written report to the Treasurer within 30 days.
- 4. The Treasurer shall prepare all state and federal reports as required.
- 5. Disbursements over \$200 must be approved by the Board except for normal expenses.
- 6. With approval of the Board, the President may appoint an Assistant Treasurer in the absence of the Treasurer. The Assistant Treasurer shall have the same rights and authority to perform the duties of this office.
- 7. The Treasurer shall see that no monies are spent without Board approval and shall be responsible for budget adherence.

ARTICLE IX

GOVERNING BODIES

Sec. A. <u>Governing Body.</u> This body shall consist of the elected officers, and Standing Committee Chairmen.

It shall have the following powers and duties:

- 1. Serve as the governing board of the Club
- 2. Ratify the appointments of the President
- 3. Perform all other duties consistent with the objectives and policies of the Club
- Sec. B. <u>Executive Committee.</u> This body shall consist of the five (5) elected officers. It shall have the authority to act for the Board between Board meetings.
- Sec. C. <u>Standing Committees:</u> These consist of: Chaplain, Decorations, E-mail notification, Greeters,
 Historian, Lunch Coordinator, Photographer, Precinct City Chair, Publicity/Globe ads, Publicity/Globe,
 Publicity/Ch. 6, Reservations, Sunshine Chair, Voter Registration, Ways & Means/Fundraiser,
 Website/Publicity, donations opportunity coordinator, and others appointed by the President and
 ratified by the Governing Board.

Newsletter Editor: (1) Compiles articles from President and others and formats into Newsletter.

- (2) Takes Newsletter to printer, puts labels on Newsletter (furnished by Membership) and takes them to the Post Office.
- Sec. D. <u>Voting.</u> The Executive Committee members and the Standing Committee Chairs shall have voting Privileges at Board meetings.
- Sec. E. A majority of the members at a Board meeting and at an Executive Committee meeting shall constitute a quorum.

ARTICLE X

COMMITTEES AND THEIR DUTIES

Sec A. Appointment and Term of Office

1. Chairman of all standing committees shall be appointed by the President and ratified by the Board.

Sec. B. Special Events Committee

- 1. This committee shall be responsible for the planning and presentation of the annual Installation Dinner and for any other special events during the year.
- 2. The Program and Publicity shall be responsible for their respective functions in connection with Special events.

Sec. C. Budget Committee

- 1. This committee shall convene in January and prepare a one-year budget which will be submitted to the Board for approval at its February meeting.
- 2. The Budget Committee shall review the budget in July and prepare an updated budget if necessary.

ARTICLE XI

RULES OF PROCEDURE

- Sec. A. <u>Retiring Procedure</u> All retiring officers and committee chairman shall transfer all Club records to their successors prior to the Board meeting in January.
- Sec. B. <u>Absentees</u> A Board member absent from three (3) consecutive Board meetings without valid reason and without notification to the President shall automatically be terminated.
- Sec. C. Robert's Rules of Order, newly revised, shall be the governing authority of all questions insofar as they are not covered by these Bylaws or any standing rules of the Club.
- Sec. D. No form of communication may be used such as correspondence, TV, radio, news releases, etc., using the Club's name without being authorized by the President. The President shall receive a copy of any correspondence sent out by anyone.

ARTICLE XII

AMENDMENTS

Sec. A.

New bylaws may be adopted, or these bylaws may be amended or repealed at will by a majority of the members of the Board of Directors or by a majority vote of the Executive Committee if necessary (see Article IX, Sec. B.).

ARTICLE XIII

DISSOLUTION

In the event of the dissolution of this Club, after all accounts have been satisfied, the remaining monies shall be distributed to a nonprofit fund, foundation, or corporation which is organized and operated exclusively for social welfare purposes, and which has established its tax-exempt status under Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(4).

Pat Micone, President **Betty Oliker, First Vice President** Date _____ **Heidi Flores, Secretary** Date _____ **Donna Gailius, Second Vice President** Date _____ John R. Davis III, Treasurer Date _____

These bylaws were approved by the Executive Board on July 25, 2025